BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation
and Petition to Revoke Probation Against:

KENTON LANCE CROWLEY
40970 Alton court
Temecula, CA 32591—6%8

Pharmacist License No. RPH 38214

Respondent.

Case No. 3107

OAH No. L2008040153

ORDER DENYING RECONSIDERATION

The Board of Pharmacy having read and considered respondent’s petition for
reconsideration of the board’s decision effective, NOW THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED

that the petition for reconsideration is denied. The Order of Adoption and Decision and

Order in this matter shall become effective October 31, 2008.

IT 1S SO ORDERED this 30" day of October 2008.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER
AFFAIRS STATE OF CALIFORNIA

KENNETH H. SCHELL

tBoard Presidenttt



BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation Against:

: Case No. 3107
KENTON LANCE CROWLEY,

40970 Alton Court OAH No. L2008040153
Temecula, CA 92291-6948 -
Pharmacist License No. RPH 38214,

Respondeht.

STAY OF EFFECTIVE DATE

Respondent filed a Petition for Reconsideration in the above-entitled matter on
October 20, 2008. In accordance with the provisions of Section 11521 of the Government
Code, and for the sole purpose of considering the Petition for Reconsideration, the effective
date of the Decision is hereby stayed until October 31, 2008. -

IT IS SO ORDERED this 21% day of October, 2008.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By Wﬁ SAret

KENNETH H. SCHELL
Board President




BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA o

In the Matter of the First Accusation and Petition to

Revoke Probation Against: Case No. 3107
KENTON LANCE CROWLEY OAH No. L.2008040153
40970 Alton Court

Temecula, California 92291-6948

Pharmacist License No. RPH 38214,

Respondent.

v DECISION
The attached Proposed Decision of the Administrative Law Judge is hereby adopted

by the Board of Pharmacy as its Decision in the above-entitled matter.

This decision shall become effective on. October 23, 2008

It 1is so ORDERED on September 23, 2008

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By %ﬁ‘%{ g‘é/;/

KEXNETH H. SCHELL
Board President



BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Case No. AC 3107

Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation ,
Against: OAH No. 12008040153

KENTON LANCE CROWLEY,

Pharmacist No. RPH 38214,

Respondent. J

PROPOSED DECISION

Daniel Judrez, Administrative Law Judge with the Office of Administrative Hearings,
heard this matter on July 16, 2008, in Los Angeles, California.

Anne Hunter, Deputy Attorney General, represented Virginia Herold (Complainant),
Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (the Board).

Robert C. Martinez, Attorney at LaW,IFredrickson, Mazeika & Grant, represented
Kenton Lance Crowley (Respondent). Respondent was present.

The parties submitted the matter for decision on July 16, 2008.
FACTUAL FINDINGS

1. On or about February 1, 2008, Complainant filed the First Amended
Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation. Respondent had already filed his Notice of
Defense on October 1, 2007, in response to the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation
originally filed on September 12, 2007.

The Parties’ Conlentions

2. Complainant contends there are four causes to discipline Respondent’s
pharmacist license. All four causes emanate from a 2007 misdemeanor conviction suffered
by Respondent for driving with a blood alcohol level greater than .08 percent. Complainant
further contends Respondent’s conviction constitutes a failure to obey all laws, and that that
{allure constitutes cause to revoke the probation the Board previously imposed on
Respondent’s pharmacist license in 2005. Complainant seeks the revocation of Respondent’s
license and the costs of investigation and prosecution.



3. Respondent acknowledges his conviction, but contends it should not result in
the revocation of his license because that conviction is not related to his professional waork as
a pharmacist. Respondent acknowledges he has struggled with a substance abuse problem in
the past, but argued that his conviction is not evidence of a current addiction problem and
further contends the conviction does not constitute a violation of the probationary terms and
conditions of his pharmacist license. Respondent argued that, if anything, the Board should
extend his probationary period by three years, a period that would adequately assure the
Board of Respondent’s on-going lawful conduct.

Respondent’s Licensure and Background

4. The Board issued pharmacist license number RPH 38214 to Respondent on
September 29, 1983; it expires on September 30, 2008, unless renewed. Respondent
stipulated to the surrender of his license, as set forth in Factual Findings 6 and 7, and
consequently, the Board cancelled his license on July 6, 1999. On April 8, 2005,
Respondent’s license was reinstated, but placed on a three-year probation with various terms
and conditions. (Factual Finding 8.)

S. Respondent works in various capacities as a pharmacist. Currently, he is the
Chief Executive Officer of Crowley Consultants Inc., in Temecula, California. He has
maintained this employment since July 1998. In this capacity, he provides, among other
things, consulting, staffing, and marketing services to compounding pharmacies. Respondent
is also the Vice-President of Marketing and Scientific Affairs for Applied Pharmacy
Services, a corporation in Las Vegas, Nevada, and Pasadena, California. He has maintained
this employment since December 2000. Thirdly, Respondent is also a contract pharmacist
for Advocate Rx Solutions West in Carson City, Nevada. In this capacity, he provides
pharmacist services to contract pharmacy operations. He has maintained this employment
since January 2006. Respondent is a member of various professional and community service
organizations; he has written a number of publications on various issues of pertinence to the
pharmacist community.

The Stipulated Surrender of Respondent’s Pharmacist License

6. In February 1999, Respondent stipulated to the surrender of his California
pharmacist license after an Accusation was filed against him. In a case entitled, In the
Matter of the Accusation Against Crowley Family Pharmacy and Kenton Crowley, case
number AC 2107, the Board’s then-Executive Officer alleged that: 1) in February 1997,
Respondent had dispensed the wrong medication to a customer (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §
1716); 2) in October 1997, while working as a pharmacist, Respondent was under the
influence of non-prescribed controlled substances (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4327; Health & Saf.
Code, § 11170); 3) in February 1998, Respondent provided dangerous drugs, including
sending them out of state, without a prescription (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4059, subd. (a), and
4059.5); and 4) in August 1998, Respondent self-administered Demerol, resulting in a nearly
fatal overdose, and was arrested for possessing a controlled substance. (Health & Saf. Code,
§ 11170.) Pursuant to all of these allegations, the Board’s then-Executive Officer alleged



unprofessional conduct by Respondent, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
4301, and sought revocation of his pharmacist license.

7. On February 5, 1999, Respondent admitted the “truth of each and every factual
allegation contained in the Accusation and further admit{ted] that cause exist[ed] thereby 1o
impose discipline against [his license], as set forth in the Accusation.” Among other things,
Respondent agreed to surrender his license and that he would not reapply or petition for
reinstatement for at least three years from the effective date of the stipulated surrender, July
6, 1999.

Respondent’s Petitions for Reinstatement

8(a). More than three years after the effective date of the stipulated surrender of his
pharmacist license, Respondent petitioned the Board for reinstatement, but the Board denied
his petition in June 2003.

8(b). In September 2004, Respondent re-petitioned for reinstatement, and a quorum
of the Board heard this second petition on January 20, 2005. In that proceeding, the Board
considered Respondent’s underlying actions, his evidence of rehabilitation', and criminal
convictions Respondent suffered after the underlying. Accusation, as discussed in Factual
Finding 6, had been filed. Specifically, the Board found that Respondent was convicted on
November 19, 1998, for providing an addict with a controlled substance (a violation of
Health & Saf. Code, § 11153), and possessing a controlled substance (a violation of Health &
Saf. Code, § 11350), both felonies. Those convictions resulted in three years of formal
criminal probation and a jail sentence of 120 days. The Board also found that Respondent
was convicted on September 23, 1999, for possessing a controlled substance (a violation of
Health & Saf. Code, § 11377, subd. (2)), also a felony. For that convictioh, Respondent
served a 1 6-month prison sentence. Ultimately, however, the Board granted Respondent’s
petition, reinstated his pharmacist license, then revoked, but stayed the revocation, and
placed Respondent’s license on three years of probation with various terms and conditions.

8(c). One of the probationary conditions required Respondent to obey all laws.
Another condition required Respondent to report, within 72 hours: 1) any arrest for a
violation of the Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal
controlled substances law; 2) a guilty or nolo contendere plea in any state or federal criminal
proceeding; 3) a conviction of any crime, or a fourth action irrelevant to the instant matter.
Pursuant to the probationary terms, if Respondent violated a condition of probation during
the three-year period, after giving Respondent notice and an opportunity to be heard, the
Board could then revoke the probation and carry out the disciplinary order stayed. The
Board’s decision became effective on April 8, 2005.

' Among other things, the Board found Respondent participated in a substance abuse
recovery program between July 2002 and October 2004.



Respondent’s Conviction

9. On July 16, 2007, following a plea of no contest, the Sonoma County Superior
Court, in case number SCR513206, convicted Respondent of violating Vehicle Code section
23152, subdivision (b) (driving with a blood alcohol level of .08 percent or more), a
misdemeanor. The court suspended imposition of sentence and granted Respondent a 36-
month conditional sentence.

10.  Respondent’s conditional sentence included serving eight days in the county
jail, paying approximately $1,923 in fines and fees, agreeing to obey all laws, not drive with
alcohol in his system, and self-enrolling in a “driving under the influence” program/school.

11. The facts underlying Respondent’s conviction were that, on May 20, 2007, in
Santa Rosa, California, Respondent caused an automobile accident while driving.
Respondent swerved to avoid hitting a deer that appeared on the road and consequently hit
another automobile. The driver of the other automobile sustained some injury, but the
evidence did not establish the severity of the injury. Respondent was driving from a family
celebration at a winery in Sonoma, California, to a medical center in Santa Rosa, where he
was starting a work shift later that night. At hearing, Respondent clarified that he was
heading back to his hotel before then going to a medical center to begin his shift. The police
arrived at the accident scene just after 9:40 p.m. Respondent told the police, “I had one glass
of wine at 8:00 p.m.” At hearing, Respondent stated that he had had ““a few” drinks that
evening. According to the arresting officer, Respondent was observed with “watery/glassy
eyes, slurred speech, and the odor of an alcoholic beverage.” The officer further observed
that Respondent “swayed in a counter-clockwise motion” while standing. The authorities
eventually tested Respondent and found him to have a 0.12 percent blood alcohol level. He
could not and did not work as a pharmacist that evening.

12. At hearing, Respondent admitted that on occasion, while not a regular custom,
when working in Santa Rosa, he would consume a glass of wine with lunch, or with dinner,
before starting a work shift that would begin at 9:30 p.m. He emphasized the fact that he
would drink in moderation and do so well before his work shift. Respondent would regularly
have dinner at approximately 4:30 p.m., and lunch significantly earlier.

13, On July 3, 2007, as part of his probationary requirements, Respondent
submitted a quarterly report, for the second quarter of 2007, to the Board. In that report,
Respondent wrote, “I received a citation for a DUI on 5/20/07.” The report was dated July 3,
2007. A handwritten note on the report indicates that the report was faxed on July 10, 2007,
but there was no conclusive evidence establishing transmission by facsimile. The report
bears a stamp of receipt, dated July 19, 2007.

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy’s Action

14, On April 16, 2008, the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy (the Nevada Board)
heard the matter entitled, “Nevada State Board of Pharmacy v. Kenion L. Crowley, R.Ph,



case number 08-013-RPH-S. In that case, the Nevada Board heard evidence of, among other
things, Respondent’s July 2007 conviction and placed Respondent’s Nevada pharmacist
license on five years of probation with various terms and conditions, including his agreement
to participate in a substance abuse treatment program. The substance abuse treatment -
program is affiliated with the program he completed in October 2004. (See Factual Finding
8(b), fn. 1.) The Nevada Board’s decision was effective May 14, 2008.

Other Earlier Convictions in Aggravation

15. On February 24, 1999, following a guilty plea, the Riverside County Superior
Court, in case number PEF001711, convicted Respondent of violating Health and Safety
Code section 11153 (providing an addict with a controlled substance), a felony. The court
suspended proceedings and placed Respondent on formal probation for 36 months.

16.  The terms and conditions of probation included serving two days in jail, with
two days of credit for time served, paying $580 in fines and fees. The court ordered
Respondent not to possess or use any controlled substance unless prescribed, and violate no
law. The sentencing court also ordered Respondent to complete a counseling, rehabilitation,
or treatment program, surrender his pharmacist license to the Board, sell any interest he
owned in any pharmacy, not enter his office in Murrieta, California, not practice as a
pharmacist during his criminal probation, and not enter any licensed area within any
pharmacy in California. '

17.  There was insufficient evidence to establish the facts underlying this
conviction,

18.  On February 24, 1999, following a guilty plea, the Riverside County Superior
Court, in case number PEF001712, separately convicted Respondent of violating Health and
Safety Code section 11350 (possessing a controlled substance), a felony. The court
suspended proceedings and placed Respondent on formal probation for 36 months.

19.  The terms and conditions of probation included serving 120 days in jail, with
two days of credit for time served (the court allowed Respondent to serve his jail time on
weekend days). The court required Respondent to pay $580 in fines and fees. The evidence
did not conclusively establish whether this figure was in addition to the $580 paid in the
" previous criminal conviction (Factual Findings 15 & 16), or whether it constituted one
payment for both convictions.

20.  There was insufficient evidence to establish the facts underlying this
conviction. |

21.  On February 24, 1999, following a guilty plea, the Riverside County Superior
Court, in case number PEM09309, separately convicted Respondent of violating Health and
Safety Code section 11550, subdivision (a) (using or being under the influence of a



controlled substance), a misdemeanor. The court denied probation and imposed sentence on
Respondent.

22, Respondent’s sentence included serving 90 days in the county jail, with four
days of credit for time served. The court allowed Respondent to serve his sentence on
weekend days. This case ran concurrent to his conviction in Factual Finding 18.

23. There was insufficient evidence 1o establish the facts underlying this
conviction.

24. On November 4, 1999, following a guilty plea, the Riverside County Superior
Court, in case number PEF003121, convicted Respondent of violating Health and Safety

Code section 11377, subdivision (a) (possessing a controlled substance), a felony. The court
denied probation and imposed sentence on Respondent.

25.  Respondent’s sentence included paying $200 in fines and fees and serving one
year and four months in state prison, with credit for 28 days of time served.

26.  There was insufficient evidence to establish the facts underlying this
conviction.

Other Facts

27.  Respondent has been involved in substance abuse treatment and counseling
programs since at least 1998. He continues to work through his addiction. However, while
he admits to-drinking alcohol with dinner and on other occasions, he does not believe he has
a problem with alcohol. He has a deep interest in issues of pertinence to the pharmacist
community and feels he has complied with the terms and conditions of his Board-imposed

probation. Consequently, he does not believe he is a danger to the public if he remains a
licensed pharmacist in California.

Complainant’s Costs

28.  Complainant incurred $8,184.75 in investigation and prosecution costs.
Complainant’s counsel submitted a declaration stating it was her good faith estimate that, up
to the date of hearing, the Office of the Attorney General would incur and bill the Board an
additional five hours of time ($790) to prepare for the prosecution of this matier.

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

The Standard and Burden of Proof’

1. Complainant bears the burden of proof. (Parker v. City of Fountain
Valley (1981) 127 Cal.App.3d 99; Pipkin v. Bd. of Supervisors (1978) 82 Cal.App.3d
652.) Complainant must prove her case by clear and convincing evidence to a
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reasonable certainty. (Ettinger v. Bd. of Medical Quality Assurance (1982) 135
Cal.App.3d 853.) Clear and convincing evidence means the evidence is “so clear as
to leave no substantial doubt” and is “sufficiently strong to command the unhesitating
assent of every reasonable mind.” (Mathieu v. Norrell Corporation (2004) 115

Cal. App.4th 1174, 1190 [citing Mock v. Michigan Millers Mutual Ins. Co. (1992) 4
Cal.App.4th 306, 332-333].)

The Law
2. Business and Professions Code section 4300 states in pertinent part:
(a) Every license may be suspended or revoked.

' (b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the
board . . . whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of
the following methods:

... 11

(4)  Revoking his or her license. -

(5)  Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as
the board in its discretion may deem proper.

(c)  The board may refuse a license to any applicant guilty of |
unprofessional conduct. -

(d)  The board may initiate disciplinary proceedings to revoke or
suspend any probationary certificate of licensure for any violation of the terms
and conditions of probation.

(e) The proceedings under this article shall be conducted in
accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 11500) of Part 1 of
Division 3 of the Government Code, and the board shall have all the powers
granted therein. The action shall be final, except that the propriety of the
action is subject to review by the superior court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of
the Code of Civil Procedure.

3. Business and Professions Code section 4301 states in pertinent part:
The Board shall take action against any holder of a license who is

guilty of unprofessional conduct . . .. Unprofessional conduct shall include,
but is not limited to, any of the following:

(-
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(h)  The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of
any dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as 1o be
dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or
to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of
the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license,

RIREEEA)

(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving
the use, consumption, or self~administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic
beverage, or any combination of those substances.

) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications,
functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a
violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United
States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this
state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence
of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be -
conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may
inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to
fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled
substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense
substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this
chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo
contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The
board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of
conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made
suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under
Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of
guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or
dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment.

(- (4]
(p)  Actions or conduct that would have warranted denial of a license.
4. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770 states:

For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or
facility license pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the
Business and Professions Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially
related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to
a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or
registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a
manner consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare.



3. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1773 states:

(a)  Unless otherwise directed by the Board in its sole discretion,

any pharmacist who is serving a period of probation shall comply with the
following conditions:

M Obey all laws and regulations substantially related to the
practice of Pharmacy;
- L]

(c) When the circumstances of the case so require, the Board may
impose conditions of probation in addition to those enumerated herein by the
terms of its decision in an administrative case or by stipulation of the parties.

6. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1769 states in pertinent part:

(b) When considering the suspension or revocation of a facility or a
personal license on the ground that the licensee or the registrant has been
convicted of a crime, the board, in evaluating the rehabilitation of such person and
his present eligibility for a license will consider the following criteria:

(1) Nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s).
(2) Total criminal record.

3) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or
offense(s).

4) Whether the licensee has complied with all terms of parole,
probation, restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the licensee.

®)) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the licensee.
1. Business and Professions Code section 125.3 states in pertinent part:

(a)  Except as otherwise provided by law, in any order issued in
resolution of a disciplinary proceeding before any board within the department
[of Consumer Affairs] ... upon request of the entity bringing the proceeding,
the administrative law judge may direct a licentiate found to have committed a
violation or violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the
reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the case.

- I



(c) A certified copy of the actual costs, or a good faith estimate of
~ costs where actual costs are not available, signed by the entity bringing the
proceeding or its designated representative shall be prima facie evidence of
reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution of the case.

Discussion

8. Cause does not exist 1o revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license, for
unprofessional conduct, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4301,
subdivision (k), as set forth in Factual Findings 1, 4, 9-11, and Legal Conclusions 1-3, 9, and
11.

9. Respondent argued that his 2007 conviction did not provide cause for _
discipline because it was not substantially related to a pharmacist’s qualifications, functions,
and duties. Respondent further argued, as one conviction, it does not meet the statutory
requirement to warrant discipline because Business and Professions Code section 4301,
subdivision (k) requires the conviction of “more than one misdemeanor.”

10.  Respondent’s 2007 crime is, contrary to Respondent’s argument, substantially
related to a pharmacist’s qualifications, functions, and duties. Respondent’s 2007 arrest and
conviction came about because he drove while intoxicated. He first told the arresting officer
he had only one glass of wine, but then admitted at hearing to having “a few” drinks.
Ultimately, it was undisputed that he had a 0.12 percent blood alcohol level, not an
insignificant concentration. In choosing to drive after drinking beyond moderation, he acted
in a way that was dangerous to himself and others, and showed a disregard for the law.
Saliently, Respondent was driving on his way to work as a pharmacist. Thus, Respondent’s
actions evidence a present and potential unfitness to perform the functions of a pharmacist in
a manner consistent with the public health, safety, and welfare. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §
1770.) Therefore, Respondent’s crime of driving with a blood alcohol level greater than .08
percent is substantially related to a pharmacist’s qualifications, functions, and duties.

11.  Inthe Accusation, Complainant alleged Respondent’s 2007 conviction as the
first cause for discipline, but solely pled Business and Professions Code sections 4300 and
4301, subdivision (k), as the legal bases for cause. Il is noted that the Accusation sets forth
Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (1) (wherein the Legislature equates
unprofessional conduct to a single conviction of a crime substantially related to a
pharmacist’s qualifications, functions, and duties), but that provision is set forth under the
jurisdictional section of the pleading and is absent from the four causes for discipline pled
thereafter. It cannot be said Complainant pled subdivision (1) as a basis for discipline. Since
Complainant relied solely on the one 2007 misdemeanor conviction as the conviction at

issue, there is no cause for discipline pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
4301, subdivision (k). -

10



_ 12. Cause exists to revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license, for unprofessional
conduct, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (h), as set
forth in Factual Findings 1-27, and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 6, 10, 13-15, and 22.

13. Complainant also pled cause for discipline pursuant to Business and
Professions Code sections 4301, subdivision (h), namely that Respondent used alcohol in a
manner that was dangerous or injurious to himself as a licensed pharmacist and to others, and
impaired his ability to practice as a pharmacist. The evidence established cause for
discipline under this provision. Respondent drank, then drove, and, as a consequence of his
impaired state, crashed into another car, caused injury to the other driver, and failed to appear
at work that evening. His actions were dangerous, injurious to himself and others, and
impaired his ability 1o practice as a pharmacist, and thus constitute unprofessional conduct.
(Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (h).) Therefore, his crime and conviction establish cause
to revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license. (/bid.)

14.  Respondent’s history of substance abuse and related criminal convictions raise
cause for concern that Respondent may be using and potentially abusing a different addictive
substance, alcohol. Given Respondent’s problems with addiction, as evidenced by his
criminal history, it is reasonable to consider his one alcohol-related conviction is more than
just an isolated incident, but more likely, a relapse into dangerous and injurious activities
related to his roughly decade-long problem with addiction. Respondent argued that the four
1999 convictions were already considered by the Board when it issued him a probationary
license, and that those convictions should not be reconsidered here. The evidence did not
establish that, in 2005, the Board considered all four convictions,? however, in any case,
nothing precludes consideration of those convictions in this proceeding. Respondent’s
criminal history, his significant prison and jail time, and his long-standing participation in
treatment and counseling programs (all events that should have impressed upon Respondent
to stay away from addictive substances) preclude a conclusion that his single alcohol-related
conviction is an isolated incident unlikely to be repeated.

15.  Respondent provided limited and unpersuasive evidence of rehabilitation.
(Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 16, § 1769, subd. (b)(5).) Nothing proffered by Respondent .
sufficiently tempered the concerns raised by his 2007 conviction, in light of his history.
(Ibid.) Moreover, when assessing the quality of Respondent’s evidence of rehabilitation,
using the regulatory criteria (Legal Conclusion 6), the evidence failed to support a conclusion
that Respondent was rehabilitated. For example, while the severity of the crime, a
misdemeanor, is not great, the nature of the crime, an additional crime involving the abuse of
an addictive substance, continuing in a long line of such crimes, was concerning as discussed
in Legal Conclusion 14 above. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1769, subds. (b)(1) & (b)(2).)
Furthermore, the crime and conviction occurred just over one year ago; significant time has

® It is noted that the findings by the Board in 2005, setting forth the dates of the
earlier convictions in aggravation do not match the dates established by the evidence

proffered at the instant hearing. (Compare Factual Findings (8)(b) with Factual Findings 15
18,21, and 24.)

11



not passed. (Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 16, § 1769, subd. (b)(B).) Lastly, Respondent remains
on criminal probation. (Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 16, § 1769, subd. (b)(4).) Therefore, it
cannot be concluded that Respondent is rehabilitated.

16.  Cause exists to revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license, for unprofessional
conduct, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (p), as set
{orth in Factual Findings 1-27, and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 6, 10, 13-15, 17, and 22.

17.  Lstablishing cause for discipline pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 4301, subdivision (h), establishes additional cause for discipline pursuant to
subdivision (p) of the same provision. The Legislature provides that the Board may take
disciplinary action against a licensee whose actions or conduct would warrant denial of a
pharmacist license application. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (p).) The Legislature
further provides that the Board may deny a license application to any applicant guilty of
unprofessional conduct. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4300, subd. (¢).) Therefore, since
unprofessional conduct was established, pursuant to Legal Conclusion 12, above,
Respondent’s conviction provides additional cause to revoke his pharmacist license, pursuant
to Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (p).

18.  Cause does not exist to revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license, for failing to
-notify the Board within 72 hours of his 2007 plea and conviction, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (p) or California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 1773, subd1v131ons (a)(1) or (c), as set forth in Factual Findings 1, 4, 6-13, and Legal
Conclusions 1-3, 5, and 19. _

19.  Respondent argued that he did not violate the terms and conditions of his
probation regarding the 72-hour written notice requirement, a requirement that he notify the
Board of an arrest, plea, or conviction, as discussed in Factual Finding 8(c). Respondent
wrote the Board and stated that he had been cited for a “DUIL” a notice the Board received by
July 19,2007, On July 3 or 10, 2007, when Respondent wrote the notice, he had not yet
been convicted. While legally inaccurate (because by then, he was undoubtedly aware that
he was being prosecuted for drinking and driving, not just cited by the police), he
nonetheless, reported a criminal action against him to the Board on, at the latest, July 19,
2007, and within 72 hours of his no contest plea, entered on July 16, 2007. As his Vehicle
Code violation was not a violation of the pharmacy law, state or federal food and drug laws,
or state or federal controlled substance laws, he was not obligated, under his probationary
terms and conditions, to inform the Board of his arrest within 72 hours, only his plea and
conviction. Complainant pled that Respondent’s alleged failure to provide the Board with a
writlen report constituted violations of Business and Professions Code section 4301,
subdivision (p) (actions or conduct that would warrant denial of a pharmacist license
application) and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1773, subdivisions (a)(1)
and (¢) (requiring pharmacists with probationary licenses to obey all laws and regulations
substantially related to the practice of pharmacy, and providing for the Board’s regulatory
power to impose additional conditions of probation). The evidence did not establish a
violation under those provisions.



20. Cause exists to revoke Respondent’s pharmacist license, for violating the
terms and conditions of probation, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4300,
subdivision (d) and the Decision and Order In the Matier of the Petition for Reinstatement of
Kenton Lance Crowley, case number AC 2107, as set forth in Factual Findings 1, 4, 8-13, 27,
and Legal Conclusions 1, 2, 21, and 22.

21.  Respondent’s conviction established a violation of Vehicle Code section
23152, subdivision (b), a state law. Therefore, Respondent failed to obey all laws, as
required by the terms and conditions of his probation. In accordance with the probationary
order issued by the Board, effective April 8, 2005, the conviction establishes cause 1o revoke
the probationary license and carry out the stayed disciplinary order, revocation. (Bus. &
Prof. Code, § 4300, subd. (d).)

22.  Inaccordance with all of the facts established by the evidence, it is reasonable
to conclude that the public safety cannot be assured if Respondent remains licensed as a
pharmacist. Therefore, revocation is appropriate.

23.  Cause exists to award Complainant costs, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 125.3, as set forth in Factual Findings 1-28, and Legal Conclusions
1-22 and 24.

24.  The costs incurred by Complainant for this matter’s investigation and
enforcement ($8,184.75) are just and reasonable to the extent that the causes for discipline
were established. Complainant failed to establish:cause for discipline under two of the four
causes alleged in the Accusation. The Board must exercise its discretion to reduce or
eliminate cost awards in a manner that will ensure the award does not deter licensees with
potentially meritorious claims or defenses from exercising their right to a hearing.
(Zuckerman v. State Board of Chiropractic Examiners (2002) 29 Cal. App.4th 32, 45.)
Therefore, and in light of the Order below revoking Respondent’s pharmacist license, it is
appropriate to reduce the cost award by approximately half, and award Complainant $4,100
in costs. Complainant did not establish that the additional five hours of preparation time
estimated by Complainant’s counsel were incurred (see Factual Finding 28), therefore, the
additional $790 requested was not granted.


https://8,184.75

ORDER

1. License number RPH 38214, issued to Respondent Kenton Lance Crowley is
revoked.
2. | Respondent shall relinquish his wall license and pocket renewal license to the

Board of Pharmacy within 10 days of the effective date of this Decision. Respondent may
not petition the Board of Pharmacy for reinstatement of his revoked license for three years
from the effective date of this Decision.

3. Respondent shall pay to the Board of Pharmacy its costs of investigation and
prosecution in the amount of $4,100 within 15 days of the effective date of this Decision.

Dated: August 14, 2008 | 5@,

DANIEL JUAREZ
Administrative Law Judge
Office of Administrative Hearings
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR. Attorney General
of the State of California

MARC D. GREENBAUM, State Bar No. 138213
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

ANNE HUNTER, State Bar No. 136982
Deputy Attorney General

California Department of Justice

300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702

Los Angeles, CA 90013

Telephone: (213)897-2114

Facsimile: (213) 897-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Probation Case_No; AC 3107
Against:
KENTON LANCE CROWLEY | FIRST-AMENDED ACCUSATION
40970 Alton Court AND PETITION TO REVOKE
Temecula, CA 92591-6948 : PROBATION
Pharmacist No. RPH 38214 |

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (complainant) brings this First-Amended Accusation and
Petition to Revoke Probation solely in her official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board
of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs (Board). |

2. On or about September 29, 1983, the Board issued Registered Pharmacist
License No. RPH 38214 to Kenton Lance Crowley (respondent). On February 5, 1999,
respondent entered into a stipulation to surrender his license to the Boal'd. The surrender became
effective July 6, 1999. Effective April 8, 2005, the Board reinstated the license, immediately

tevoked it and placed respondent on 3 years probation. The license will expire on September 30,

2008, unless renewed.
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JURISDICTION

3. This First-Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation is
brought before the Board, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to

the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicaied.
4. Section 4300 provides in pertinent part:

“(a)  Bvery license issued may be suspended or revoked.

113

“(c)  The Board may refuse a license to any applicant guilty of unprofessional
conduct.

“(d)  The board may initiate disciplinary proceedings to revoke or suspend any
probationary certificate of licensure for any violation of the terms and conditions of
probation. Upon satisfactory completion of probation, the board shall convert the
probationary certificate to a regular certificate, free of conditions.”

5. Section 4301 states that the Board shall take action against any holder of a
license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited

to, any of the following:

“(hy  The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of
any dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be
dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to
any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the
person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.

113

"(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the
use, consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or
any combination of those substances.

"(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions,
and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of
Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code
regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating
controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional
conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of
the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire mnto the circumstances
surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in the
case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine
if the conviction 1s of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction

2
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following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of
this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation
is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under
Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of
guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing
the accusation, information, or indictment,

[13

“(p)  Actions or conduct that would have warranted denial of a license.”
6. Section 4309, subdivision (g), states:

No petition under this section shall be considered while the petitioner is under
sentence for any criminal offense, including any period during which the petitioner is on
court-imposed probation or parole. No petition shall be considered while there is an
accusation or petition to revoke probation pending against the person. The board may

deny without a hearing or argument any petition filed pursuant to this section within a

period of two years from the effective date of the prior decision followmg a hearing under
this section.”

7. Section 4313 states that public protection takes priority over rehabilitation.

In determining whether to grant an application for licensure or whether to
discipline or reinstate a license, the board shall give consideration to evidence of
rehabilitation. However, public protection shall take priority over rehabilitation and,

where evidence of f rehabilitation and pubhc protection are in conflict, public protection
shall take precedence.

8. Section 118, subdivision (b), states the suspension, expiration, or
forfeiture by operation of law. of 2 license issued by a Board in the department, or its suspension,
forfeiture, or cancellation by order of the Board or by order of a court of law, or its swrender
without the written consent of the Board, shall not, during any period in whi ch it may be
renewed, restored, reissued, or reinstated, deprive the Board of its authority to institute or
continue a disciplinary proceeding against the licensee.

9. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1773, provides in

pertinent part:

“(a)  Unless otherwise directed by the Board in its sole discretion, any

Pharmacist who is serving a period of probation shall comply with, but not limited to, the

following conditions:

“(1)  Obey all laws and regulations substantially related to the practice of
Pharmacy.

113

“(c) When the circumstances of the case so require, the Board may impose

A
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conditions of probation in addition to those enumerated herein by the terms of its decision
in an administrative case or by stipulation of the parties.”

10. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility
license pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and
Professions Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the
qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it

evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the functions

authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent with the public health,
safety, or welfare."

11. Section 125.3 states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations
of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLENE

(Conviction of a Crime)

12.  Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to section 4300
for unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301, subdivision (k), and California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 1770, in that on or about July 16, 2007, respondent was convicted
of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a pharmacist, by
reason of the following:

a. On July 16,2007, respondent was convicted on his plea of no contest to
one count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (b) (driving with an excessive
blood alcohol level), a misdemeanor, in the Superior Court of California, County of Sonoma,
Case No. SCR 5]3206,.entitled People v. Kenton Lance Crowley. Respondent’s sentence
included 8 days in county j éil, 3 years probation, payment of various fines, and self-enrollment in
a DUI school deemed appropriate by the DMV,

b. The circumstances of the conviction are that on or about May 20, 2007, at

approximately 9:43 p.m., while driving on the Sonoma Highway from the Homewood Vineyard
in Sonoma to start his shift at the Sutter Medical Center, respondent lost control of his vehicle,

crossed over the center median and broadsided a vehicle driving east on the same highway.
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Respondent admitted to an officer dispatched to the scene that he had had one glass of wine at
8:00 p.m. The officer noticed that respondent had watery/glassy eyes, slurred speech, and the
odor of an alcoholic béverage. The officer also observed that respondent swayed when he stood.
Respondent submitted to a breath test which showed he had a blood alcohol concentration of
0.12 percent. Respondent was arrested and charged with one count of violating Vehicle Code
section 23152, subdivision (a)(driving while under the influence of alcohol or drugs), and one
count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (b)(driving with an excessive blood

alcohol level).

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Conduct Warranting Denial of License)
13, Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to Section
4300, subdivision (c¢), for unprofessional conduct as defined in Section 4301,. subdivision (p)
(action or conduct that would have warranted the denial of a license). The circumstances are set
forth in paragraph 12 above and incorporated herein by reference as though re-alleged in full.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Use of Alcobol Dangerous To Self)

14, Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to section 4300
for unprofessional conduct as defined in sections 4301, subdivisions (h) and (p), in that on or
about May 20, 2007, at approximately 9:43 p.m., while driving on the Sonoma Highway from the
Homewood Vineyard in Sonoma to begin his work shift at the Sutter Medical Center, respondent
crossed over the center median and broadsided another vehicle. Respondent was driving while
und.er the influence of alcohol or drugs and while he had a blood alcohol concentration exceeding
the legal limit.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure To Report Arrest within 72 Hours)
15. Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to Section
4300 for unprofessional conduct as defined in Section 4301, subdivision (p), in conjunction with

California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1773, subdivisions (a)(1) and (c), in that

5
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respondent failed to report the arrest to the Board within 72 hours as required by the Board in its
order granting respondent’s petition for reinstatement effective April 8, 2005." A true and correct
copy of the Board’s order granting respondent’s petition for reinstatement is attached hereto as

exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

OTHER MATTERS

16.  Respondent has four prior convictions that are substantially related to the
qualifications, duties and functions of a licensed pharmacist. The circumstances are as follows:

a. On or about February 24, 1999, respondent was sentenced to three years
formal probation following his guilty plea on November 19, 1998, to violating Health and Safety
Code section 11153 (providing an addict with a controlled substance) (People v. Crowley, Super.
Ct. Riverside County, 1998, No. PEF001711).

b. On or about February 24, 1999, respondent was sentenced to three years
formal probation following his guilty plea on November 19, 1998; to violating Health and Safety
Code section 11150 ( possessing a-controlled substance, Demerol) (People v. Crowley, Super. Ct.
Riverside County, 1998, No. PEF001712).

c. On or about September 23, 1999, respondent pléd guilty to violating
Health & Safety Code section 11377 (possessing a controlled substance, Ketamine/Ritalin and
Testosterone) (People v. Crowley, Super. Ct. Riverside County, 1999, No. PEF003121).

d. On or about February 24, 1999, respondent pled guilty to violating Health
& Safety Code section 11150, subdivision (a) (unla\a'ffully using and being under the influence of

a.contl'olled substance)(People v. Crowley, Super. Ct. Riverside County, 1998, No. PEM09309).

PETITION TO REVOKE PROBAEION

17.  In a disciplinary action entitled "In the Matter of the Accusation against

Crowley Family Pharmacy, Pharmacy License No. PHY 411477 and Kenton Crowley,

1. Pursuant to Penal Code section 11105.2., the Board was notified of respondent’s arrest
on May 20, 2007, for suspected driving under the influence and driving with an excessive blood
alcohol level m violation of Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivisions (a) and (b).

6
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Pharmacist License No. RPH 38214,” Board of Pharmacy Case No. AC 2107, the Board issued a
decision, effeétive July 6, 1999, accepting the surrender of both licenses. A true and correct copy
of the Board’s decision is attached hereto as exhibit A and incdrporated herein by reference.

18. On or about December 27, 2002, respondent sought reinstatement of his
pharmacist license only. The petition was denied on June 26, 2003 .2

19. On September 18, 2004, respondent again petitioned for reinstatement of
his surrendered pharmacist license no. RPH 38214, After considering the second petition, the
Board issued a decision in Case No. AC 2107, effective April 8, 2005, concluding that
respondent had established cause to grant his petition for reinstatement, but that “because of the
seriousness of the cause that led to the revocation and the additional concerns raised by the
criminal convictions, a period of continued monitoring is necessary for the protection of the

393

public.”” The Board’s decision included an order reinstating respondent’s pharmacist license No.

RPH 38214 provided that the license was immediately revoked, the revocation order was stayed,

and the license was placed on probation for three (3) years under specified terms and conditions.

The terms and conditions included:

Condition 1 of Probation:

“1 Obey All Laws. Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and

regulations substantially related to or governing the practice of pharmacy. Respondent shall -
report any of the following occurrences to the board, in writing, within 72 hours of such
occurrence: (1) an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the

Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled substances

laws, ...’

ARR

2. Exhibit A, Board’s decision granting the second petition for reinstatement, Case No. AC
2107, effective April 8, 2005, p. 2,9 5.

3. Exhibit A (decision in Case No. AC 2107 granting reinstatement effective April 8,
2003), p. 4 (Legal Conclusions).

~J




b

vy

10

11

12

Condition 13 of Probation:

“13.  Violation of Probation. If petitioner violates probation in any respect, the
Board, after giving Petitioner notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and
carry out the disciplinary order which was stayed. If a petition to revoke probation or an
accusation is filed against Petitioner during probation, the Board shall have continuing
jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be extended, until the petition to revoke probation

or accusation is heard and decided.”™

GROUNDS FOR REVOKING PROBATION

20.  Grounds exist for revoking probation and reimposing the Order of
revocation of respondent’s license in that he failed to comply with the following terms of
probation:

FIRST CAUSE FOR VIOLATION OF PROBATION

(Failure to Obey State and Federal Laws)

21.  Respondent violated Condition 1 of his probation in that he failed to obey
state and federal laws substantially related to the practice of pharmacy in that 1'éspondent was
convicted of driving with an excessive blood alcohoi level, used alcohol in'a way that was
danxgerous to himself; and failed to report his arrest for driving under the influence and with an
excessive blood alcohol level to the Board‘ within 72 hours of the occurrence. The circumstances
of these violations are sét forth more fully in paragraphs 12, 13, subdivision (e), 14, 15 and 16
above and incorporated herein by reference as though re-alleged in full.

VAN |
VN
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4. Exhibit A (decision in Case No. AC 2107 granting reinstatement effective April 8,
2005), pp. 4 and 7 (Order).
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PRAYER
WHEREFORE, complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer

Affairs, issue a decision:

1. Revoking the probation granted in Case No. AC 2107 and 1mposing the
disciplinary order that was stayed effective April 8, 2005, thereby revoking pharmacist No, RPH

38214 issued to Kenton Lance Crowley;

2. Revoking or suspending pharmacist No. RPH 38214, issued to Kenton

Lance Crowley;

3. Directing Kenton Lance Crowley to pay to the Board a reasonable sum for

its investigative and enforcement costs of this action; and

4. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: 0’2/// 08 . /
‘ C ¢ 4
(/—’é‘\/.—) /l/L—:(/\_— —N7

-VIRGINIA HEROLD i
Execu{ive Offjcer
Board ofPhdrmacy
State of California
Complainant

LA2007601025
60273936.wpd
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Exhibit A
Decision and Order

Board of Pharmacy Case No. AC-2107
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BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Tn the Matter of the Petition for

Reinstatement of}
Case No. AC 2107

KENTON LANCE CROWLEY | _
2540 South Maryland Parkway, #162 OAH No., L2004 120424
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109 '

Respondent.

- DECISION

This 1matter came on regularly for hearing before a guorum of the Board of Phanmacy
(Board) at E1 Segundo, California, on Jammary 20, 2005, Samuel D, Reyes, Admuusv-atwe Law
. Judge, Office of Adm_mstrmvu Hean_ws pluSldud at.the hpanng, :

Joshu_a A, Room, Duputy A“tomey General appeeued pursuam to Govammem Code
secuon 11522, . ‘ . A .

- Petitioner represented himself, -
-Oral and documentary evidence was received and the matter was submitted for decision.

FACTUALFINDINGS

1. On September 29, 1983, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, RPH 38214 to
Petitioner, ' ' ' " ' ‘

2, On February 5, 1999, Petifioner enfered into a Stipulation for Surrender of
Licenses wherein he surr ul'ldGle his license, which surrender became effective July 6, 1999. In . Ef

4

surrendering his license, Petitioner admitted the truth of the allegations in an accusation ﬂadf*on
September 3, 1998 (Accusation), and stipulated that these allegations constituted cauge.f
discipline. Petitioner further agreed to reimburse the Board for its costs of nwes’ngatlan and

enforcement, an amount established at $29,426.25, as a condition precedent to any, £ future; llggnse""' )

-
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3, The Accusation alleged as the bases for discipline nmltiple violations of
pharmacy law uncover ed during a June 2, 1997 audit of the Crowley Family Pharmacy, where
Petitioner was the responsible pharmacist, The allege d viclations included acting as a
manufactorer and wholesaler without appropriate licensure, disPensmg drugs  without
prescriptions of ‘proper authorization, d1spensmcr dmgs in nappropriate containers and without
required labels, allowing an unregistered person to act as a pharmacy technician, failing to
mamtain wqu]red documentation pertaining to pharmacy operation and drug acquisition and
dispensation, and failing to properly store drugs. The Accusation also alleged that on February
19, 1997 Petitioner dispensed the wrong medication, Promethazine 50mg/ml instead of
Prochlorperazing 5 mg/l, to a customer. who became very il 'and suffered 2 seizre as a result of
the' error. ' The Accusation further alleged that on October 15, 1997, while working in the
pharhacy, Petitioner was found under the influence of Morphine and Benzodiazepines, and that

“on Angust 7, 1998, Petitioner nearly overdosed from self-administered Demerol,

4, Subsequent to the ﬁling of the Accusation, Pefitioner suffered criminal
convictions and served time in state prison. On November 19, 1998, hhe was convicted of
violating Health and Saféty Code sections 11153 (plowdmg an addict with a controlled
substance) and 11350 (possession of a controlled substance) both felony crimes. He was
sentenced to three years of formal probation and 120 days in jail, On September 23, 1999, -
~ Petitioner 'was convicted of violating Health and Safety Code section 11377, subdivision (2)
(possession of a controlled sub.stance)', A falony, and Wwas santenced to 16 months in state prison: B

- 3. Petltlonal initially sought reinstatement of his phannaclsL 11661186 on December
27, 2002, The petition for reinstatement was -denied on June 26, 2003, In fts Decision, the Board
eyplessed conoern about the relatively short period of recovery and abourt Petitioner’s lack of
sustained exposure to pharmaceuticals in the State of Nevada, where he had obtained a license in

September 2002; tlie Board also ex pressed a desire to hear from those Iamlhar with' Petmonul 8
1aoove1y efforts, . :

: 6. The instant Petition for Reifistatement of Certificaté to Practice Pharmiacy was
filed on September 18, 2004, '

7. Petitioner’s violation of pharmacy rules and regulations occurred durinig a period
of substance abuse, . He nevertheless accepts responsibility for his actions and for his substance
abuse, He has been clean and sober since August 6, 1998 and is committed to continued sobriety,
He participated n the Board’s diversion program, Hill Solutions (a pnvate TECOVEry DIOZIAN),
and in pro gramos offered by the California Department of Corrections, During the period of July
26, 2002 to October 1, 2004, Petitioner participated in the substance al>use recovery prograim
affiliated with the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, Professionals Reaching Nevads -~
Pharmacists Recovery Network (PRIN-PRIN), He is presently a member of PRN-PRN’s Steemlg

Compmittee, Peh’monul regularly attends twelve-step meetings as part of 1118 con’tmmng 1ecove1y
efforts.



8. . Ira Porter, Petitioner’s sponsor for the past 6 yaars‘ wrote a letter and testified on .
his behalf. Fl& has ssen Petitioner work narder to chmge his life and to maintain SObl‘lGly than
anyone he has sponsored. A

0, John Cronin, Pharm.D,, J.D., also testifisd on Petitioner’s behalf He iz Senior
Vioe President of the California Pharmacists Association and represented Petitioner in the matter
that led to the license surrender, He has kept in contact with Pefitioner over the years and has
seen fhe transformation as sobriety has taken hold, Applonmatay 1Y, years ago, Petitioner
addressed his organization about the benefits of PRN-PRN and expr essed mtewst m. helpmg
other phanmacists with substance abuse problems

10.  Petitioner obtained 2 phan11a<:1st license in the State of Nevada on Sep’cember 20,
200? which license was issued on a probatlonaw basis. He sucoessﬁilly completed probation in
October 2004,

_ .11. Petitioner has been working as a pharmacist for Smith’s Food and Drug, o retail
store in Las Vegas, Nevada since October 2, 2003, He works an average of 59 hours per week in

two pharmacies, often in ‘13-hour shifts. He is personally involved in dispersing medications, On -

Jume 6, 2003, he was promoted to-pharmacist manager, 2 promotion made possible by removal -
of a restriction on his probationary Nevada Jicense. His supervisor, Henry Medina, R.Ph, wrote
in support of the Petition that Petitioner las been candid about s addiction, that he has been a

good employee, and that he has never suspected Peuuow of using contlolled SubS'EalchS or-
'talcmg the phalmacy § oplatas : :

12.  Petitioner’s wife and six chlldlen Thave prowded support during ‘the 1eoove1'y
process; They contimme to reside in Temecula, California, and Petitioner divides his time between
- his work in Las Vegas and his family in Temescula, He would like to return to fll time practice
n (‘ahfonua although he plans to continue to work in Ne\fada to complete certain projects,

;

13 . He has completed 51,5 houss of continuing educatlon durmg the October 25
2002 to November 13, 2004 period,

14,  Pefitioner has been unable to pay the Board’s costs of imvestigation and .

enforcement because of pewonal financial difficulties that have led to the filing for bankruptey
relief.

15, In addition to the two letters of recommendation written by Petitioner’s sponsor
and by his supervisor, discussed above, five others were submitted with the Petition, Henry .
Milner, Pharm D, has known Petitioner for 21 years and attests to his sldlls as a pharmacist and
to his recovery cormitment. Tim A. Lopez, PharmD., has known Petitioner since 1998 and
provides him with part time enployment in Las Vegas; he echoes the comments of Dr, Milner
and urges reinstaternent Brian Haimovitz employed Pefitioner in 2002 and 2003 to provide -

(8%}



operations and marketing assistance and credits him for tuming the business around. Duane
Rogers, M:A., M.P.H, and Lamry Espadero supervised Petitioner’s participation in the Board
diversion and PRIN- PRN TECOVETY PrOZIaIns, respectw ly, and offered 2 positive progriosis for
his contimed sobriety. :

16, By reason of the foregoing, Petitioner has established sufficient rehabilitation to
warrant remnstatement of his license, ' ' '

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

Pumsuant to the foregoing factual findings, the Board conmcludes that cause was
established pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4309 and Government Code
" gection 11522 to grant the Petition and to reinstate Petitioner’s certificate, However, because of
 the seriousness of the conduct that led to the revocation, and the additional concems iraised by.
the criminal DDll"\’thlOl‘lS a pellod of contumed monitoring is neoessary for the protection of the
. public. :

 ORDER

The P etition is granted and Petitioner’s license is reinstated; provided, however, that the
- license is rev oked; provided, further, that the revocation is stayed and the license is placed on
- probation for a‘period of three (3) years on the following terms and conditions: -

1. ObeyAllLaws. Petitioner -shall obey all state and federal laws and
regulations substantially related to or governing the plactice of pharma-cy. Respondent shall
report any of the followmg occurrences to the board, in writing, within 72 hours of such
occurrence: (1) an arrest or issuance of a criminal oomplamt for violation of any provision of
- the Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws,-or state and federal controlled
substances Laws; (2) a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in. any state or federal criminal
plocaedmg to any criminal oomplamt information or 111d1cimant (3 =& conviction of aly -
crime; or (4) discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state and federal -
agency which involves respondent’s pharmacist license or which is related to the practice of
pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling or distribution or billing or charging for
of any drug, device or controlled substance. |

' 2. . Reporting to the Board, Petitioner shall report to the board quarterly. The
repart shall be made eitherin person or in writing, as directed, He shall state under penalty of-
perjury whether there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. If
the final probation report is not made ag directed, probation shall be extended automatically 4
until such timme as the final report is made and accepted by the board,




3. - I“ltﬁl’\’l"W with the Board. Upon 1ecelpt of reasonable notice, Petitioner shall
appear in person for Interviews with the Board 1 upon 1eqLest at various intervals at a Iocation
to be debermmed by the Board, Pailure to appear for a scheduled interview Wnrhoun prior
notification LO Boald staLf shall be considered a violation of probauon '

4. Coouulauon with Board Staff, Petitioner shall cooperate with the Board's
inspectional program. and In the Board's monitoring end investigation of respondent's
compliance wyith the terms and conditions of 1115 or her probation. Failure fo comp]y shall be
o01151dered a violation of pr obamon

5. CDllt]lllllnE Edueatlon Petitioner shall provlde 6\/1d61106 of efforts to maintain
skeill and kno wledge as a pharmacist as directed by the Boald

6. Notice {6 Enmlcg/els Petitioner shall notify all plesent and prospective
employe1s of the reinstatement of his license in this matter and the terme, conditions and
restrictions irmposed on the license, Within 30 days of the effective date of this Deolswn and
within 15 days of Petitioner undertaking new employment, Petitioner shall cause his direct
supervisor, phannamst—m charge and/or  owner to 1epofc to the Boa1d in  writing
acknowledping the emplayer has read this Decision, ' S

IfP et’i'tionel',v\lorlcs for or.is.employed by or through a pharmaéy employment service,
- respondent ruoust notify the direct supervisor, pharmacist-in- ehavge and/or owher at every

pharmacy of the and terms and conditions of this Declslon m advance of Petitioner
COMMencing woﬂc at each phannacy

_ Empl oyment" w1thm the meamng of this provision shall include any mll—tlme pa1 t-
fime, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist, whether the
1esponde11t 18 consider ed an employee or mdependent contractor,

7  Probation Monﬂ:ounz Costs Petitioner shall pay the Dosts assomated with
~ probation monitoring as determined by the Board each and every year of pr obation, Such

costs shall be payable to the Board at the end of each year.of probatior, Faﬂme to pay such
. costs shall be.considered 3 violation of probation.

8. Status of License. Petitioner shall, at all times Whﬂe onpr obailo(n, malmam an
active current license with the Board, mcluding any period dulmg which "suspension or
probation is tolled, If Petitioner's license expites or is cancelled by operation of law or

otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication, Pefitioner’s license shall be Sllbj ect to all terms and
conditions of this probation not previously saﬂsﬁed



9, Licensé Suir endel whde on Probatlon/SuSDenswn Followmg the effective date
of this decision, should Petitioner cease practice due'to retirement or health, or be otherwise
unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of p:ob__auon, Petitioner may tender his or her
license to the Board for surrender, The Board shall have the discretion whether to grant the
request for sunender or take amy other acuon it deems appropriate and reasonable, Upon
formal acceptance of the surrender of the license, Petitioner will no longer be SU.bJ ect to the
terms and conditions of plobatlon

Upon acceptarice of the surrender, Petitioner shall relinquish his poclket license to the
Board within 10 days of notification by the Board that the surrender is accepted. Petitioner
may not reapply for any license from the Board for three years from the effective date of the
surrender, Petitioner shall meet all requirements applicable to the hcense sought as of the
date the application for that license is submitted to the Board, '

10. Notiﬁcaﬁ on_of Bmployment/Mailing Address' Change, Petitioner shall notify

the Board in. wrumg within 10 days of any -change of employment, Said notlﬁcatlon ghall

' molude the reasons for leaving and/or the address of the new employm SUpervisor or owner .
and work schedule.if kmown. Petitioner shall notify the Board in Wlmng ‘within 10 days of'a

change in 11ame malhng address or phone number

11, Tolhnc of Probation. Should Pem:lonal cease pr actlcmg phannacy, Petitioner
must notify the Board in wrltmg within 10 days of cessation of the practice of pharmacy or
~ the resurnption of the practice of - pharmacy Such periods of time shall not apply to the
reduction of the probation period. It is a violation of probation for Petitioner's probation to
rémain tolled pursuant to the provisions of this condmon for a period exc eedmg three years,

“Cessation . of praotloe ‘means any peuod of tlme exceeding 30 days in whlch

1asponda11t is not engaged in the practme of pharmacy as defined in SPCt1011 4057 of the
Business.and Professions Code, 7 ° :

12, Examination, Petitioner -shall take and pass the California Pharmacist
Jurisprudence Examination (CPJE) as scheduled by the Board after the effective date of this
decision at Pefitioner’s own expense. If Petitioner fails to take and pass the examination
within. six months after the effective of this Decision, Petitioner shall be. suspended from
practice upon written notice. Petitioner shall not resume the practice of pharmacy until he
takes and passes CPJE at a subsequ ent exannnahon and is notified, n writing, that he has
passed the examination,

During suspension, Petitioner.shall not enter any pharmacy area o1 any portion of the
licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or amy other
- distributor of drugs which is licensed by the board, or any manufacturer, of where dangerous
- drugs and devices or controlled substances are maintained. Petitioner shall not practice



pharmacy nor do any act mvolvmc drug sel=ouon selection of stoclk, _manufam_rmcr

compounding, dispensing or pah=11r consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, or -

be a consultant to any licensee of the Board, or have access to or ‘conirol the ordeluc
. manufacturing or dlspansmo of dancral ous dmvs and conirolled substances:-

During suspension, Petitioner shal] 110L engage in any acm\flty that requires the_

plofesglona] judgment of a pharmacist, Petitioner shall not divect or control any agpect of the

-~ practice of pharmacy. Petitioner shall not perform the duues of a phaunacy technician or an

awmptee ‘for any entity licensed by the Board, Subject to the above restrictions, Petitioner

. may confinue to own or hoeld an interest in any pharmacy in which he holds an interest at the
time this daclslon becomes cffectwe unless otherwise Speolﬁed in this order.

Failure to take and pass the axaminat'iou within one year of the effsctive date of this
decigion shall be considered a violation of probation. Suspension and probation shall be
extended until Petitioner passes the examination and ig notified in writing,

13, - Violation of Probation. If Petitioner violates probation in any respect; the
Board, after giving Petitioner notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probatmn
and carry out the d1501p1111a13/ order which was stayed: If a petition to revoke probation or an
accusation is filed against Pefitioner’ during probation, the Board shall have continuing
- jurisdiction and the penod of probation shall be eAtendad 1mtil the petmon to revoke’

probation or acousahon 18 heard and decided. -

If PBLlﬁlOllel has not oomphed with any term- or condition of pr obatwn the Boald ghall

- have confimiing Junsdlctlon over Petitioner, and probation shall automatically be emtended
ynti] 21l tenms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other action as

~ deemed app1opr1a‘ce to treat the failure-to comply as & violation of probation, to terminate
©PrC obahon and to impose the penalty which was stayed. : ’

- 14, : Conmleﬁon of Probation, Upon successful completlon of pmba’non
Petitioner’s license will be fully restored,

DATED: April 8, 2005
EFFECTIVE DATE: April 8, 2005 L 4 A

| ?7;/ éﬂ & /e’_ff:—’j
Stanley Go’fdeﬂvel g, P,Lﬁ‘sﬂbni

Board of Pharmacy
State of California
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In the Matter of the Accusation
Against: '

CROWLEY FAMILY PHARMACY
25405 Hancock Avenue
Suite 100

Murrieta, CA 92562

Pharmacy License
No. PHY 41147
‘and_

KENTON CROWLEY
40970 Rlton Court
Temecula, CA 92591

Pharmacist License
No. RPH 28214

YER; Attornsy CGeneral

Stete of Czlifornia

GORDON

ttorney General

ar No. 137569

t of Justice

2 Street, Suite 1100
Box Bb266 _

, California 92186-5266
(619) 645-2073

rttorneys for Complainant

-BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFATRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STIPULATION FOR
SURRENDER OF LICENSES

Respondents.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
). - -
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

the Board of

T 1S HEREBY STIPULATED by and between Crowldy
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Crowley‘ra ily Pharmacy (”Respondent _navmacy") and

Kenton Crowley ("Respondent Crowley") have received and rezd the

accusation which is presently on file and pending in Case No. AC

2107 before the Board, a copy of which'is attached hereto as

Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein.

2. Responderits are represented by counsel John

Cronin, Esg. in this matter. Respondents have fully and

completely discussed with their coungel the effects.of this
Stipulation.

3. Respondents understand the:nature of the charges

alleged in the Accusation and that, 1f proven at bearlng, such

cbarges and allegations would constlpute cause for imposing

dwsc1pllne upon respondent pharmacy s llCEDS° and respondent

Crowley s pharmac1st s license issued by the Board.

4. Respondents admit the truth of each and every

faCEuaW allegatlon conpalned in the Accusatwon and further admlt

that cause exists thereby to 1mpose dlsc1p11ne against their

licenses, as set forth in the Accusation. If this matter had

gone to hearing, responderts would have presehted evidence in
defense of the ellegetions contained‘in‘the Accusatioﬁ.

5. Respondents are fully informed regarding the

provisions4and effects of this stipulation, which respondents

have carefully read. Respondents are fully aware of thelT Ilght

to a hearing on the charges contained in the Accusation, thElI

right to confront and cross-examine witnesses against them, their

right to reconsideration, appeal, and any and all other rights
which may be accorded them under the Califormia Admi

Procedure Act (Government Code Section 11500 et seg.).
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'ﬁnless.apﬁrgved by the Roard,

shall remain in effect.

6. Respondents fre

I ly and voluntarily waive each

h and
every one of the rights set forth above.
7. Respondents understand that in sidning this
ipu W.tion rather than Contésting the Accusation, they are

agreeing that the Board of Pharmacy of the State of California

|fmay issue its order accepting the surrender of their licenses

without further legal process.

8. It islacknowledged by the parties that this .

stipulation constitﬁtés an offer in settlement to the Board of
Phalmacy and is nOt effectlve until adoptton by the Board.
9. In the event this 8t1pulatlon is not adopted by the
Board of Pharmacy, nothtng herein recited shall be constlued as a
walve: ot respondents’ right toAa hearlng or as an adm1551on o)
the' truth of any of the métters'dharged in the-Accﬁéation.
| | tlot The parties agreé that the Stipulation recited

herein shall be null and wvoid and not binding -upon the parties

exéept for this paragraph,. which

The respondénts undEtstaﬁd apd agree

Athat in dec1d1ng whether or not to adopt this Stlpulatlon the -

Board may receive oral and wrltten communlcatlons fr om its staff

and the Attorney General's office. Communications pursuant to

this paragraph shall not disqualify the Board or other persons
from future participation in this or any other matter affecting

respondent. In the event the Board in its discretion does not

approve this settlement, -this Stipulation,'with the exception of

this paragraph, is withdrawn and shall be of no evidentiary value

and shall not be relied upon or introduced in any dlsc1011nary
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sction by either party

{l Roard Teject this Stipulati

Board’'s Tormal acceptance of sald surrender

'and for Respondent Crcwley his wallet cevtl

Respondents fulther uncerstand that when thechard accepts'th

iereto. Respondents agree that should the
tion and if this case proceeds to

hearing, respondents will assert no claim that the Board was

prerdlCed by its review and discussion of thﬂs SClDulatlDD or of

sny records related hereto.

1i.a The parties agree that facsimile copies of this
Stipulatidﬂ: including facsimile signatures of the parties, may

be used in lieu of original documents and signatures. The

,facsimile‘copies will have the same force and effect as

originals. . B ' L L o
12. Respondents hereby surrender Pharmacy License No.

PHY 41147 and Phatmaclst Llcense Nc RPH 3821A subject to the

Upon acceptance of

the stipulation and surrender-by.the Bcard, respondeats agree to

'_surrendet and cause to be delwvered to the Boa?d.thelr llcenses

cate as weWT.

surrender'of thElI llcenses, they will no 1oager.be permitted to

pYaCthE phalmacy in California.

13. Respondents fully understand and aglee that in .-

acting upon any application for llcensure; rellcensule, or

lelnetatement which 1espondents ever file in the State of

California or in any other state, respondents’ adm;selons herein

may be used by the licensing agency in acting on-such
applicaticn. |

/1)

Ay
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.decision to allow the eele of the pharmacy.

14. Respondents fully unders and and acvee that they

shall not be eligible to either reapply or petition for the

reinetatement of t helr Dhatmacy and pharmacist licenses

-h

or gzt
least three (3) years from the etzectlve date of the Roard's

decision.

15. Respondente'also agree that prior to their
petltlonlng for reinstatement of th871 pharmacy and phalmacwst
11censes or their reappllcatlon F01 licensure, respondents eheli
pay costs to the Board for‘iﬁvestigation:and]prosecution of thts

case..

16. Respondent Kenton Crowley understands that if he -

reapplies or petitions for the reinstatement of his Dharmacist

1icense, he shall not resume the practice Oijharmacy untlT he

takes and passes the phatmac1st s llcensute ayamﬂnatlop

17. "I Respondent Crowley Famlly Pharﬂacy de51res-toA

sell 1t5 1nte1est in the pharmacy, the surrender of

its iicense
w111 be. SL&YGd for 90 daye from the effective date of this |
Any prePDSedlsale of
Crowley Family.Pharmacy muet be:approved by the Board of Pharmacy 
prior to the'sale. At the conclusion 55 the 90 days from the
effective date of this.decisieni the surrendef of'?harmacy
Licenee No. PHY 41147 will be-aocepted b§ the Board.

18. The costs incurred by the Boérd for the
investigation'and enforcement of this case total $29,426.25,
Payment by respondents of the cest recovery sum of $29,426.25
shall be defetred unless and until respondent XKenton Crowley, er
aﬂy.entity of which he ie‘or will be an officer, director

associate, partner, owner, gualifier, or other pe 1
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capaclty, to the Board of Pharmacy, at whi

211 apply

©th

Board grant respondent Kenton Crowley a license
- : <y

above cost r

or reinstatement or relicensure

;AL

Payment

any

ch time, should the

of the

ecovery amount shall be 3 condition precedent to

isguance of any such license.
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Il Pharmacist License No. RPH 28214 and

AC’RNOWT EDGEMENT

I, Kenton Crowley, hereby certify that I have read this

Stipulation in its entirety. I have discussed the terms and

conditions set forth 'in the Stipulation and Order with my

attorney, John Cronin, Esg. I enter into the Stipulation freely,

voluntarily, intelligently, on'advice of counsel, and with full

knowledge of its force amd effect. 1 understarnd that in signing

this Stipulation I am waiving my right to a hearing on the
charges set forth in the Accusation on file in this matter. I

do ‘hereby voluntarily surrender my certificates of licensure,

~Pharmacy License No. PHY -

h

41147, to the Board of Pharmacy, for its acceptance. 1 recogmize

that-upon'férmal acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board

will lose all rights and priﬁileges_to practice as‘é pharmacist

or opelate a phalmacy 1n ‘the State of Callfarnla I agree that a

 1acs1m11e copy of thlS SEWPHlathH, lnclLdlng a faceimile copy of

my Slgnature may be used with the same force and effect as the

originals.

bATED: ' ﬂl/&/fcfl

/M/ﬁé»

CENTON LOROWLEY
Respondent

i

KEYTON' CROWLEY, Owner and
Authorized Representative of
CROWLEY FAMILY PHERMACY
Respondent
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- . DATED:

BILL LOCKYER, Attornevy General
of the State of California

> N
}\ _ﬁ'&&,{_/\ , /({'j::"_,‘r\‘ 'rJ '<":;u\__/

KAREN L. GORDON
Deputy Attorney Genexral .

Attorneys for Compl ainant

21s)3

JOHN Z. CRONIN , .
Attorney for Respondents
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. ORDER OF THE BOZRD OF PHARMACY

The surrender of Pharmacy License No. PHY

>

1147 by

regpondent, Crowley Family Pharmacy, and Pharmacist License No.

RPH 38214 by respondent, Kenton Crowley, is accepted, on the.

terms set forth in the Stipulation For Sufrendex of License, by

' the Board of Pharmacy of the State of California.

This decision shall become effective on the 6th  day
of '. | July 1999 .

IT IS SO ORDERED this _ 7th day of June

BOARD.OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORN '

.By._ti%%zﬁyé%éjféz.“ V{ﬁ?ﬂx&;_ -

THOMAS 5. NELSON
Board President -




BN (R

[ €8]

123

L
18
19
20

21

25
26

27

| 2gainst:

-
=F
=

TEL E. LUNGREN, 2ttorney Gesneral
of the State of Californiza
72REN L. GORDON
peputy Attofney General
state Bar No. 137868
DepaTrtment. of Justice

110 West A Street, Buite 1100
pPost Office Box 85266 '
San Diego, California 921B6-5266
Telephone: (618) 645-2073

rattorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY -
. DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFATRS
~ STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation

CASE NO, AC 2107

CROWLEY FAMILY PHARMPCY

25405 Hancock Avenue
Suite 100
Murrieta, CA 92562

Pharmacy License
No. PHY 41147

‘and

KENTON CROWLEY
. 40970 Alton Court
Temecula, CA 92591

Pharmacist License
No. RPH 38214

Respondents.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
).
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

‘Complainant Patricia F. Harris, who as cause for

disciplinary action, alleges:

PARTIES
1. Complainant is the Executive Officer of the
4C§1ifornia State Board of Pharmacy ("Board") and makes and
th

is accusation solely in her official capacity.

ACCUSATION
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2. On or about September 18, 1995, the Board of

Pharmacy issued Pharmacy License No. PHY 4]

i
1~

147 to Crowley Family
pharmacy (hereinafter "Respondent Pharmacy"). This license'was..
in full férce and effect at all'relevant times herein and will
expire on'Septemberll, 1899, unless fenewed. |

3. On or ébout Septémber 29, 1983, the Board of
Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No. RPH 38214 to Kéntbn

Crowley ("Respondent Crowley"). This license was in full force

and effect at all relevant times herein and will expire on

September 30, 1999, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. This accusation is made in reference to the

4 N . . . e
following statutes of the California Business and Professions

N

od

(D,

« -

A. Section 4055 (a) states that no persom shall

furnish any dangerous. drug, except upon a prescription.

B. Section 40538.5 prohibits dangerous .drugs from.
being transferred, sold, or delivered outside this
state unless done in compliance with~Califonia laws.

C. Section 4301 states that the board shall take

‘action égaihst any liéense holder who is guilty of 
unprofessional cénduct inéiuding, but not limited ﬁo:
(f) The Commission of any'act.involving moral
turpitude,“diéhonesty, frand, deceit, or

corruption.

/7
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The administering to onesél

-

Fh

, of any controlled

substance, or the use of any dangerous drug to
the extent or in 2 manner as to be dangerous

or injurious to oneself, or to any other person
or to the public, or to the eXtenﬁ that the use
impairs the ability of the persbn to conduct

with safety to the public the practice authorized

by the license.
The violation of any of the statutes of this

state or of the United States regulating

‘controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

Violating any provision or terms of this

“chapter or of the applicable federal and
state laws and regulations governing-

‘pharmacy.

Section 4306.5 states that unprofe5sional

conduct for a pharmacist may include acts or omissions

that involve, in whole or in part, the exercise of his

education, training, or experience as a pharmacist,

whether or not the act or omission arises in the course

of the practice of pharmacy or the ownership,

management, administration, or operatiomn of a pharmacy

br other entity licensed by the board.

E.

Section 4327 provides that any person who, while

on duty, sells, dispenses or compounds any drug while under

the influence of any dangerous drug shall by guilty o

“h

=

misdemeanor.

w
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ides that every certificats

license, permit, registration or ex

[}

mption issued by

the Board may be suspended or revoked.

G. Section 4359 provides that the Board may
discipline a license hoider who has been found guilty
by placing him on probationp suspeﬁding his right to
practice for a period not exceeding one year, revoking
his license, or tékiﬁg such other action as the board

in its discretion may deem proper.

H. '~ Section 125.3 provides, in part, that the Board
- may request the administrative law judge to direct any
"licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations

‘of the licensing act, to pay the Board a sum not to exceed

the reasonable costs of the investigatiom and enforcement of

the case.

4. This accusation i1s made in refexrence to the

)

lowing regulations of the California Penal Code:

A. Section 1000 states that the'court.may set a
hearing for deferred entry of judgment 1f a defendant is
found eligible following -a charge of being under the

influence of a controlled substance.

B. Section 1000.2 indicates that . the court shall hold

a hearing and, after consideration of any information
relevant to its decision, shall determine 1f the defendant
should be granted deferred entry of judgment. If the court

does not deem the defendant a person who would be bene

h

+

fitted.

!
(
D

by deferred entry of judgment, or if the defendant

rr

dossg 1o

3

15N
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consent to participate, the procesdings shall

any other case.

itle 16:

5. This accusation is made in reference to the
following regulations of the Califormia Code of Reculations,
A. Section 1716 states that pharmacists shall not

deviate from the requirements of a prescription except upon
the prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug

product in accordance with Section 4047.6 of the Business

and Professions Code.

_B.' Section 1770 provides that for the purpose of

denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or

. facility license, a crime or act shall be considered

substantialiy reiated to thé qualifications, functibné
oxr dufies of a licensee or regist?ant if té a.
subStanpig%HQ¢gfea it eVideﬁcésipresent or poteptial
unfitness of a licensee or registrént to perform the
functions adthérized.by his license or fegistrétion in a

manner'consistent with the public health,‘safety;.or

welfare.

&. This accusation is made in reference to the

following regulations of the California Health and Safety Code:

A. Section 11170 states that no person shall

prescribe, administer, or furnish a controlled substance for

himself.
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Renton Crowley have subjected their licenses

'proper sales records. Respondents Crowley amd Pharmacy

7. Respondent Crowley Family Pharmacy a
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Lo discipline as set

forth in paragraﬁhs 8 through 10 below.

8. On or about May 21, 1997, the Board received
complaints of numerous violations of the pharmacy law by
Respondent Crowley Family Pharmacy and Respondent Kenton Crowley.
Qn.June 2, 1997, Pﬁarmacy Board Inspectors coﬁducted an

investigation of Crowley Family Pharmacy. The investigation and

' an audit of Respondent Crowley Family Pharmacy revealed 25

separate violations of the Pharmacy Act by Respondent Pharmacy
and Respondent Crowley. Respondent Pharmacy acted as a
manufacturer without proper licensure from the U.S. Food and Drug

Administration. Respondent Pharmacy acted as a wholesaler

without proper licensure from the Board. Respondents Crowley and

Pharmacy provided dangerous drugs,‘ihcluding controlled

11

substances, to persons without prescriptions from auvthorized

prescribers. Respondents Crowley and Pharmécy providéd dangerous

drugs, including controlled substances, to preséribers without

transferred, sold; or delivered dangerous drugs to persons not -
1icensed or authorized to receive or orderjdamgerous drugs.
Respondents Crowley and Pharmac§ refilled prescriptiéns without
authorizations from éuthorized prescribers. Respondenté Crowley
and Pharmacy allowed persons other than a pharmacist to reduce to

writing orally transmitted prescriptions for dangerous drugs,
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that such substitution was not permissible. Re

and Pharmacy dispensed DIEBCIlDEWODS in containers that did not

meet'the requlrements~oz state law and were incorrectly labeled.

rRespondents Crowley and Pharmacy furnished compounded dangerous

dlugs without Dloper warning Wabe71ng Rpspopd_“ts Crowley and
Pharmacy did not properly maintain records of acquisition or
dispositionAof,dangerous drugs and did not maintain a current

inventory. Respondents Crowley and Pharmacy could not provide.

‘the names of employee pharmacists and their employment dates.

Respondents Crowley and Pharmacy allowed pharmacy technicians to

perform packaging without assistance, superv vision and control of
a pharmacistﬁ Respondents Crowley and #harmacy allowad a persmn
to act as a pharmacy techn1c1an w1;hout being - Teg ste*ed with the .

Board. Respondpnus CTDWTey and Phalmacy iUﬂHWShEd danae*oua'

drugs to patients other than what was prescribed for them.

Respondents Crowley and Pharmacy exceeded the amount of

"reasonable quantities? when compounding unapproved drugs for

prescriber office use. Respondents Crowley and Phérﬁacy did not
maintain accurate{redérdsvof compounaed items made for future~
furnishing} Respondents Crowley and Pharmacy,did-not maintain
accurate,vreadily rétrievéble information aé to.which pharmacist
checke& prescriptions filled by pharmacy technicians.
Resgpondents Crowley and Pharmacy didlnot annualiy.certify the

laminar flow hood used for compounding. Respondents Crowley and

Pharmacy did not properly store pharmaceuti
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12

clarification. Respondents Cfowléy and Pharm
written policies and procedures for pharmacy technicians.
Respondents Crowley and Pharmacy poésessed more controlled
sﬁbstanées'than were accounted for. Respohdants Crowley and
Pharmacy utilized DEA-222 order férms intan'hﬂpfopéf manner.
Regpondent Crowley falsely made prescriptions for dangefous

drugs, including controlled substances.

9. On February 19, 1997, Respondent Pharmacy and
Respondent‘Crow1ey dispensed the_wrong.medication,'Promethazine
SDmg/ml-inStéad ot Prbclorperazine Emg/ml, to customer M.L. M.I

L.

became very i1ll and suffered a seizure following the drug error.

{ Respondent' Pharmacy and Respondent Crowley dispensed medication

othex ﬁhan‘what'was prescribéd'for_cus?o?erAM,g, in-violétiOnrof
California Co&e éf Regulations, Title ls,fsertion 1116. This
constitutes unproféésioﬁél conduct asvdefipéd.iﬁ Busihess and -
Préfessions Code secfion 4301 (n).

| 10. On .ox aﬁout Febrﬁary 24, 1998, REspéndeht Pharmacy'
and.Respondent Crowley‘proﬁided dangérous d;ﬁgs, including”
cbnﬁrolled Subsﬁaﬁces, to persons\withéut prescriptions from‘

.

authorized prescribers and sent controlled substances out of

’

state without prescriptions in v

]_!.

olation of Business and

Professions Code sections 4059 (a) and 4059.5. This comstitutes
unprofessional conduct as defined in Business and Professions
Code section 2201 (f£), (3), and (n)
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‘beimg under the influence of controlled substances

|| Medical Center and revived.

llf':Régbo?aéﬁéjKéhtonACrowley'ﬂas'subjectéd his
license to di5ci§line.as set férth in péragraph541; tHrough 15
i2. On October‘lé, 1997, Respondent Kenton Crowley was
found to be under the influenée of controlled substanées
(Morphine and Bénzodiézepinés) not'preséribéd fof him, within the
crow ley Family Pharmacy p&emises while working és a ﬁﬁarmacist in
viol ation of Business and Professions Code section 4327 and
Heal th and Safét& Code section 11170. Tﬁis constitutes
unpr-ofessional conauct as defined in Business andﬂPfofesgions

Code section 4301 (h), (3), and (n).

13. On October 15, 18987, Respondent Crowley was
arrested for being under the influence of controlled substances

whil e working as a pharmacist. Respondent was not convicted of

following this

arrest because he was granted a deferred entry

~of judgment to
allow - him to paftiéipéte iﬁ.a drug‘di#ersiqn program_pursuant to
?enal.Code sections 1000 and 1000.2. -

14. Omn August 7,'1998, Respoﬁdent-érowiey éelf—
administereﬁ Demerol, a controlled substance, résulﬁing.in'a
neaxrly fatal.éverdoseu Respondent Waé admittedAto'Sharp Murrieta

15. Respondeﬁt'ﬁas agrested on August 7, 1998 fbr
possession of coﬁtrolled’su£étances. Respondent Crowley'’s
conduct violated>Healﬁh and Safety Code section 11170 and

constituted unprofessional conduct as de

ih

ined in Business and

Pro

h
o]

essions Code section 4301 (h), (3), and (n).
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PPLYEP

Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Number PHY 41147

1

heretoforg igsued to Resp ndent CrowLey Family
Pharmacy;

Revoking or suspending Pharmacist Number RPH .
38214, heretofore issued to Respondent Kenton
Crowley; |

Directing Respondents Crowiey Family Pharmacy and

Kenton Crowley to pay
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this action; and

Taking such other 'and further action as the Board

[_x.
I‘
[0

deems app p to pro

rt

ct the public health,

safety and welfare.

DATED p//z&]é/nju/ Z /3 7 g

(;ézZZLé4M; %Z‘ /4¢/V“4“
PATRICIAF. HBARRIS
Executive Officer )QQJ1«
‘Board -of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
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